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Apostolic Church of Queensland

Key details
Also known as Annerley Methodist Church
Addresses At 151 Cornwall Street, Annerley, Queensland 4051
Type of place Church
Period Victorian 1860-1890
Style Carpenter Gothic
Lot plan L59 RP854693
Key dates Local Heritage Place Since — 1 January 2004

Date of Citation — May 2006
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Construction Roof: Corrugated iron;
Walls: Timber

People/associations C. Topper (Builder);
Taylor and Richer (Architect)

Criterion for listing (A) Historical; (B) Rarity; (D) Representative; (E) Aesthetic; (G) Social

This timber and tin Carpenter Gothic church was opened in 1888 as the demand for new community services
increased. Designed by architects Taylor and Richer, the building has unique exterior and interior decorative
features. The church served the community as a Methodist church until 1973 and has since been in use as an
Apostolic church.

History

The church was originally built as the South Brisbane Methodist Church on land subdivided as part of the
Thompson Estate and opened on Sunday, 4 November 1888 with the opening service conducted by Rev James
Nolan. The church initially began as a Primitive Methodist Sunday School in 1887 on the site.

There was a demand for new community services, including churches, with the economic revival of the mid-
1880s and accompanying increase in Annerley’s residential population with the opening up the Thompson Estate.

Methodist churches in Brisbane originally were established under one of the forms of Methodism — Primitive,
Bible Christians, Wesleyan and United Free Methodists. By the early 1890s congregations were declining which
led the Methodist churches to combine in late 1890s. This strengthened their spiritual and financial base and
extended preaching circuits and building churches in outlying areas.

The Cornwall Street church was designed by Messrs Taylor and Richer and erected by contractor Mr C Topper.
Taylor and Richer practised as architects in Brisbane from 1 May 1888 when Mark Taylor of South Brisbane
joined the builder William Richer in partnership.

The church was finally completed with a debt of £300. Land titles records show that the church trustees took out
a mortgage of £280.

The church could seat 200 people and was designed with a partition wall which could be taken down when
enlargement was necessary.

It has superior detailing for a small church, with stained glass windows, vestry accommodation (added later),
wooden barrel-vaulted ceiling and sloping floor down to the sanctuary. A comment was made in the first issue of
the Queensland Christian Witness and Methodist Journal for 1889 that, “the floor has a gentle rise from the pulpit
to the door, which has the effect of drawing the preacher and people close together”.

The gable-roofed church hall was built prior to 1935 as it has been noted in a detail plan of the same date.

In 1973 the church was sold to the Apostolic Church of Queensland. Extensive alterations were subsequently
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undertaken prior to the church’s 25th jubilee celebrations in 1998. This included extending the porch and
vestibule and installing a new stained glass window.

H F Niemeyer, the founder of the Apostolic Church in Queensland, arrived in the Colony from Germany with his
wife and three children on 28 June 1883. The Apostolic Church of Queensland was established in 1886 and
today has 28 churches across Queensland with three located in the Brisbane region — Annerley, Nundah and
Oxley.

Description

This Gothic style church is a “timber and tin” structure facing Cornwall St and located in close proximity of the
street alignments of Cornwall and Duke St on the north-eastern corner of the site.

The building has a rectangular plan with a street-facing gable, decorative brackets and finial. The steeply pitched
roof extends beyond the walls to provide small overhanging eaves. Natural light is introduced by lancet stained
glass windows at the front and sides of the building and diamond-shaped coloured glass windows at upper
section of the front wall.

Access to the building is via a side entry to the front vestibule projecting towards the street. This entry porch
appears to have been enlarged during the most recent renovation of the building. Pictures of the church prior to
renovations in 1993 show steps on either side of the porch entrance. There were also dormer windows in the
gabled roof, which have since been removed.

An unusual feature of the interior is the floor of the nave, which has been designed to slope down to the
sanctuary. Of note is the church’s timber barrel-vaulted ceiling.

Both the church and hall at the rear have plastic cladding with a weatherboard pattern over the original timber
weatherboard exterior. Both buildings are in a good state of repair. The Apostolic Church built the roof cover over
the western side of the hall. Toilet facilities are located on the southern boundary at the rear of the hall. There is
a grass car park area on the western section of the site.

Statement of significance

Relevant assessment criteria

This is a place of local heritage significance and meets one or more of the local heritage criteria under the
Heritage planning scheme policy of the Brisbane City Plan 2014. It is significant because:
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Historical
CRITERION A

The place is important in demonstrating the evolution or pattern of the city's or local area’s history

as a religious building constructed to serve the spiritual needs of the Annerley community.

Rarity
CRITERION B

The place demonstrates rare, uncommon or endangered aspects of the city’s or local area’s cultural heritage

as one of few remaining examples of a small intact 1880s church in the region.

Representative
CRITERION D

The place is important in demonstrating the principal characteristics of a particular class or classes of cultural
places

as a purpose-built timber frame church constructed in 1888, whose design reflects its use as a centre for
worship, religious education and social activity.

Aesthetic
CRITERION E

The place is important because of its aesthetic significance

for its simplicity, elegant form and detailing.

Social
CRITERION G

The place has a strong or special association with the life or work of a particular community or cultural group for
social, cultural or spiritual reasons

as it has played an important part in the lives of successive generations who have attended services, religious
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instruction and/or community activity on this site.
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Note: This citation has been prepared on the basis of evidence available at the time including an external
examination of the building. The statement of significance is a summary of the most culturally important aspects
of the property based on the available evidence, and may be re-assessed if further information becomes
available. The purpose of this citation is to provide an informed evaluation for heritage registration and
information. This does not negate the necessity for a thorough conservation study by a qualified practitioner,
before any action is taken which may affect its heritage significance.

Citation prepared by — Brisbane City Council (page revised September 2020)

il
ol

—A— —
ooz LU B
BRISBANE CITY

Dedicated to a better Brishane

Date of Citation — May 2006 Page 5



